

T



# INTERNATIONAL STUDENT HANDBOOK

# **Table of Contents**

	1
WELCOME	6
Our Vision	6
Our Mission	6
OUR CORE VALUES	6
Your Learning Outcomes	6
STUDENT ENROLMENT AND ORIENTATION	7
ACADEMIC POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	7
CAMPUS RULES	7
COMPLAINTS AND APPEALS POLICY	
COMPLAINTS PROCESS	8
Appeals Process	9
EXTERNAL APPEAL	
WITHDRAWAL OF COMPLAINT/APPEAL	
COURSE CREDIT	
VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING (VET) COURSES	11
HIGHER EDUCATION (HE) COURSES	
INTERNATIONAL STUDENT VISA CONDITIONS	
MONITORING STUDENT COURSE PROGRESS FOR VET COURSES	
Satisfactory Course Progress for VET Students	15
STUDENT AT RISK AND ACADEMIC SUPPORT POLICY FOR HE STUDENTS	15
ASSESSMENT	
CONDUCT OF ASSESSMENTS	
GENERAL RULES	17
WHAT STUDENTS SHOULD DO	17
Academic Misconduct	
GUIDANCE ON ACADEMIC MISCONDUCT	-
Failure to Attempt an Assessment	
REASSESSMENT FOR VET STUDENTS	
ATTENDANCE	
CURRENT ADDRESS DETAILS	
SCHOLARSHIPS AND AWARDS	
STUDENT ADMINISTRATION INFORMATION	
PAYING FEES	20
ACCESS AND EQUITY	
ACCESS TO STUDENT RECORDS	
PRIVACY POLICY	

How Information is Collected	21
How WE Hold Information	22
How Information is Used	22
Student Identifier	22
Assessment Task Submission and Examination	
Disclosure (Sharing)	
How the NCVER and Other Bodies Handle Your Personal Information	
SURVEYS	-
CONTACT INFORMATION	
Access and Requests for Information Correction	
COMPLAINTS	
CONTACT INFORMATION	
PROTECTING PERSONAL INFORMATION	
Website Direct Marketing	
Direct Marketing	
	-
SOCIAL MEDIA USE	
REFUND POLICY	27
STUDENT DEFAULT	28
DEFAULTS BY AAPOLY	-
VISA REFUSAL	
WITHDRAWAL FROM COURSE OF STUDY	
No Refunds	29
CANCELLATIONS, DEFERRALS AND SUSPENSION	
Definitions	
EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCES	
COMPASSIONATE OR COMPELLING CIRCUMSTANCES	
AAPOLY INITIATED SUSPENSION	
WITHDRAWAL	
AAPOLY INITIATED CANCELLATION	
TRANSFER BETWEEN REGISTERED PROVIDERS	
ТЕХТВООКЅ	
VICTORIAN STUDENT NUMBER (VSN)	
UNIQUE STUDENT IDENTIFIER (USI)	
STUDIOSITY	
CAMPUS AND FACILITIES	
LIBRARY SERVICES	
COMPUTER LABORATORIES	
STUDENT EMAIL ACCOUNT	
CALENDAR OF EVENTS (SOCIAL ACTIVITIES)	
TIMETABLES	36

STUDENT NOTICE BOARDS	
ACADEMIC SUPPORT AND EXPECTATIONS	
Copyright	
HEALTH AND SAFETY ON CAMPUS	
Emergency Evacuation Procedures (All Campuses)	
Types of Health Care in Australia	
Public System	
Private System	
ATTENDING AN AUSTRALIAN HOSPITAL	
GENERAL PRACTITIONERS (GPS)	
MEDICAL SERVICES	
What do I do if I'm sick?	
Seeing a Doctor	
Public Hospital Waiting Times	
PHARMACIES	
Prescription Medication	
Over-the-Counter Medication	
DENTAL AND OPTICAL	
INTERPRETER SERVICES	
Mental Health	41
OVERSEAS STUDENT HEALTH COVER (OSHC)	41
How do I get OSHC?	
Recommended OSHC Providers	
ACCOMMODATION	
SPECIAL NEEDS	
LAWS AND SAFETY IN AUSTRALIA	
OBEYING THE LAW	42
LEGAL SERVICES AND ADVICE	
SEXUAL ASSAULT AND HARASSMENT	
What is Sexual Assault?	43
Sexual Harassment can include behaviour, such as:	
Precautions	44
What do I do if I am assaulted?	44
NSW Rape Crisis	44
Making a Police Report	44
IMPORTANT NUMBERS AND CONTACT DETAILS	
Emergencies – Dial 000	45
Police	45
Fire – Dial 000	45
Ambulance – Dial 000	
Victoria State Emergency Service – Dial 132 500	
NSW Sate Emergency Service – Dial 132 500	
Lifeline - Dial 13 11 14	

Poisons Information Line – Dial 131 126	
Emergency Translation – Dial 1300 655 010	46
Department of Home Affairs – Dial 131 881	46
Australian Taxation Office (ATO) – Dial 132 861	46
INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS GROUPS	
Australian Federation of International Students (AFIS)	46
Council of International Students Australia (CISA)	46
Study Melbourne	47
MELD Magazine - Australia's Leading International Student News Website	47
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES	
Асадеміс Неад	
Student Services & Counsellors	
HE ACADEMIC SUPPORT	
VET ACADEMIC SUPPORT	48

# WELCOME

Welcome! I am delighted that you have chosen to study at Academies Australasia Polytechnic (AAPoly). I know you have made a wise decision to further your studies and build your career. The team at AAPoly is committed to your success and we will do everything possible to ensure you have a positive and treasured learning experience while you are with us. Let me introduce you to AAPoly.

#### **Our Vision**

To be the provider of choice to a niche market in higher education by offering a select suite of high-quality courses that empowers students to flourish and achieve their career goals.

#### Our Mission

To provide students with an engaged, high quality academic experience, supported by a proactive service culture and a personal touch. We will achieve this by identifying, developing, and delivering industry-relevant and academically rigorous courses in targeted discipline areas to produce graduates who are work ready.

#### **Our Core Values**

- Student-centred.
- Show Respect
- Act with integrity.
- Uphold equity, access and sustainability principles.
- Encourage free intellectual inquiry through scholarly activities.

#### Your Learning Outcomes

By choosing to study at AAPoly, students will have the opportunity to acquire and develop a range of attributes that will not only help to make them job ready in a dynamic environment, but also enrich their professional and personal lives wherever in the world they may decide to work and live.

I wish you every success in your studies at AAPoly and a rewarding experience in Australia.

Joanna Kelly Chief Executive Officer

# Student Enrolment and Orientation

It is mandatory for new students to attend the orientation session for their course. Please be punctual. It is expected that all students will bring the following to the orientation session:

- Passport and Visa;
- Fees for the term or semester (as appropriate); and
- electronic Confirmation of Enrolment (eCoE)

Higher Education students in Melbourne should also bring AUD\$100 deposit for an access card which is refundable at the end of their studies.

Notifications for re-enrolment will be issued to continuing students prior to the start of the term.

#### **Academic Policies and Procedures**

Please refer to the current academic policies and procedures on AAPoly's website (http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies).

#### **Campus Rules**

- 1. Mobile phones are to be switched off during class time, unless allowed by the lecturer for class work. If you are expecting an important call, please let your teacher know before class.
- 2. No food or drinks in the classrooms. Water bottles are allowed.
- 3. No Smoking. By law, smoking is strictly prohibited in any Melbourne office building and therefore is not allowed on the AAPoly Campus. Students who wish to smoke must leave the building. Smokers must not stand near the street entrance doors.
- 4. Keep the kitchen area clean and tidy. The kitchen is a shared area for students and staff. Please wipe down the benches and clean up after yourself. When washing dishes, check the sink for any scraps left in the drain. Please leave the area how you would like to find it.
- 5. Only speak English. The best way to improve your English is to practise! Try to speak English as often as possible, this includes during break times!
- 6. No Discrimination. Discrimination is treating one person differently to another based on prejudice. The Australian government has legislation to prohibit any form of discrimination. Students in classes are expected to treat each other with respect and to show respect for each other's cultural differences. Learn to accept such differences, including:
  - Gender
  - Race .
  - Country of origin
  - Marital status

- **Religious beliefs**
- Age
- Ability/disability
- Sexual Orientation
- 7. No Harassment. Harassment is to give uninvited and unwanted attention to another person to the point of annovance. It is, therefore, unacceptable for one student to continuously "harass" another person by words or actions. The Australian Sex Discrimination Act specifically outlaws this type of activity. Physical contact should be avoided, particularly with the opposite gender. Physical violence between students will not be tolerated and may result in instant dismissal from AAPoly.

If anyone believes they have been harassed or discriminated against, please report it to the Student Counsellor, the Course Coordinator or other trusted AAPoly staff member. Such reports will then be investigated, and appropriate actions taken. Please refer to the student policies page of our website for

the current Deferment, Suspension or Cancellation of a Student's Enrolment Policy and Procedure, and the Sexual Harassment and Sexual Assault Policy and Procedure via the following link: <u>http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies</u>.

# **Complaints and Appeals Policy**

Students shall have access to a transparent, fair and prompt process for resolving complaints and appeals. Where possible and appropriate, the complaints/appeals shall be dealt with locally at the level at which the issue of the complaint/appeal occurs. If the complaint/appeal cannot be resolved at the local level, the student will have access to an AAPoly internal appeal process. If the matter cannot be resolved through the internal appeal process, then the student will have access to a final hearing by an independent external person or organisation. Throughout these processes, no student will be disadvantaged for having made a complaint or appeal.

All students have the right to be represented and/or accompanied by a nominee at all times.

The availability of a complaints and appeals policy and procedure does not affect the student's right to take action under Australia's Consumer law if the Australian Consumer Law applies.

## **Complaints Process**

For academic complaints students should approach the Trainer and/or Course Coordinator (for vocational students) or the Lecturer and/or Academic Dean (for HE students). For any other issues, students should contact Student Services.

- Academic related complaints
  - In the first instance, students should raise the matter with their Trainer or Lecturer.
  - If the student is not satisfied with the Trainer's response or the matter is more serious, the student completes and returns the Student Complaint Form available on <u>www.aapoly.edu.au</u> to Student Services. The student should attach copies of any supporting documents (if applicable). If the matter is very serious or confidential, the student may wish to make an appointment with the Course Coordinator to give notice of the complaint. The complaint is referred to the Course Coordinator or the Academic Dean.
  - Within 10 working days of the receipt of a formal complaint the Course Coordinator or the Academic Dean will consider the information provided and may contact the student and/or trainer/staff members if further information is required. The Course Coordinator the Academic Dean shall, if they see fit, make a decision on the matter and advise the student in writing the actions/plans, details of the reasons for the outcome and right to access an independent external complaints and appeal process within 10 working days of concluding the investigation of the complaint.
  - If the student is still unhappy, they can request Student Services within 5 working days of the outcome to refer the complaint to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
  - The student will be informed in writing of the outcome of the complaint, including details of the reasons for the outcome and right to access an independent external complaints process within 10 working days of concluding the investigation of the complaint.

- Should a student feel that the problem cannot be resolved within AAPoly, the CEO should be informed.
- During the complaints process the student is entitled to have a support person (at the student's cost).
- Students may also access the external appeals process within 5 working days of the outcome. Please refer to 'External Appeal' on page 5.
- AAPoly's complaint resolution process does not inhibit the student's right to seek other remedies under Federal or State law.
- The student's enrolment will be maintained while the complaints and appeals process is ongoing.
- Other complaints
  - For other complaints, students must raise the matter to Student Services. If the complaint cannot be resolved informally, students may lodge a formal complaint by submitting the Student Complaint Form available on www.aapoly.edu.au to Student Services. AAPoly will maintain the student's enrolment while the complaint process is ongoing. Students must also enrol in their course during the process.
  - Within 10 working days of the receipt of a formal complaint the Department Head, Student Services (DH-SS) will consider the information provided and may contact the student and/or staff members if further information is required. The DH-SS shall, if he sees fit, make a decision on the matter and advise the student in writing the actions/plans, details of the reasons for the outcome and right to access an independent external complaints and appeal process within 10 working days of concluding the investigation of the complaint.
  - If the student is still unhappy, they can request Student Services within 5 working days of the outcome to refer the complaint to the CEO.
  - The student will be informed in writing of the outcome of the complaint, including details of the reasons for the outcome and right to access an independent external complaints process within 10 working days of concluding the investigation of the complaint.
  - Should a student feel that the problem cannot be resolved within AAPoly, the CEO should be informed.
  - During the complaints process the student is entitled to have a support person (at the student's cost).
  - Students may also access the external appeals process within 5 working days of the outcome. Please refer to 'External Appeal' on page 5.
  - The AAPoly's complaint resolution process does not inhibit the student's right to seek other remedies under Federal or State law.
  - The student's enrolment will be maintained while the complaints and appeals process is ongoing.

## **Appeals Process**

• If a student wishes to lodge an appeal against an official decision made by AAPoly they need to submit an Appeal Form to Student Services and in case they are appealing against Intention to

Report for unsatisfactory course progress the student needs to submit the Appeal Form to the Course Coordinator or the Academic Dean, within 20 working days of receiving the notification.

- Staff responsible as per the type of appeal, will commence the investigation within 10 working days of the appeal being lodged. Staff will consider the information provided (if applicable) and information about the student in the Student Management System (Paradigm) and may contact the student if further information is required. Once the outcome has been finalised the student is informed in writing.
- If the outcome is in favour of the student, AAPoly immediately implements any decision or corrective/preventative actions required and commences continuous improvement process. A record of the appeal is kept in Paradigm as evidence of the communication to the student.
- If the outcome is not in favour of the student, the student can choose to either withdraw the appeal
  or access external appeal process with the Overseas Student Ombudsman (OSO). AAPoly informs
  the student in writing of their right to access external appeal process within 10 working days of
  concluding the internal appeal. Student must contact the OSO within 5 working days of the written
  outcome and inform the relevant staff. If student does not proceed and withdraws the appeal,
  AAPoly proceeds with the decision and keeps a record in Paradigm.
- OSO investigates and informs the student and AAPoly of outcome. The appeal procedure will be determined by the independent mediator. During the appeal process the student's enrolment will be maintained. If required, all documentation from the student and AAPoly related to the appeal will be forwarded to the OSO.
- If the outcome of the external appeal is in favour of the student, AAPoly immediately implements any decision or corrective/preventative actions required and commences continuous improvement process. A record of the appeal is kept in Paradigm as evidence of the communication to the student.
- If the outcome is not in favour of the student, AAPoly proceeds with the decision, and keeps a record in Paradigm.

## **External Appeal**

• The student will have access and receive the outcome of only one external appeal process before AAPoly may report the student to the relevant authorities. Hence, AAPoly does not have to await the outcome of multiple external appeals processes which the student may wish to access. However, AAPoly will inform students that they could refer to the OSO. The OSO offers a free and independent service for overseas students who have a complaint or want to lodge an external appeal about a decision made by the college. You can initiate the external appeals process to OSO by telephone, in writing, by fax, or using OSO's online complaint form. Refer to OSO's contact information below.

Telephone: 1300 362 072 Email: ombudsman@ombudsman.gov.au Website: <u>www.ombudsman.gov.au</u> Online Complaint Form: <u>https://forms.business.gov.au/smartforms/servlet/SmartForm.html?formCode=oco-complaint-form</u>

## Withdrawal of Complaint/Appeal

The student may withdraw a complaint or appeal at any time during the resolution process. The student must make the withdrawal in writing and submit it to the Student Services. This will then be forwarded to the DH-SS. Alternatively, the student may send an email to the DH-SS using their email address registered with AAPoly.

DH-SS will send a written acknowledgement of the withdrawal to the student. The matter will be concluded and deemed to be resolved.

# **Course Credit**

#### Vocational Education and Training (VET) Courses

Recognition of Prior Learning is an assessment process that involves assessment of an individual's relevant prior learning (including formal, informal and non-formal learning) to determine the credit outcomes of an individual application for credit.

Credit Transfer is of granting of status or credit by AAPoly to students for units of competency completed at the same or another education provider.

The procedure for applying for Credit Transfer (CT) is as follows:

1. Students must complete the Course Credit Application Form to formally apply for CT by the first week of the first term of the course. Students will submit the form with the supporting documents to the Marketing Manager (prior to issuance of COE) or the Student Services (after issuance of COE until the first week of a term). The entire application will be forwarded to the Manager, VET Operations for assessment.

Note: Students must provide AAPoly with the original or certified copies of the document, whether it is a transcript of the qualification, credential, testamur, award or reference letter. The document must be in English. If it is not, AAPoly requires that it be translated by a recognised body.

- 2. The Manager, VET Operations will assess the application. Only the relevant Manager, VET Operations can grant CT.
- 3. The Manager, VET Operations will advise the Student Services of the outcome of the CT application. The Student Services will update the student management system and PRISMS (if applicable).
- 4. The student will be informed of the outcome of the request in writing. A copy of the letter will be retained in the student's folder.
- 5. Students have the right to appeal in circumstances where they do not agree with the outcome of the request. Please refer to the Complaints and Appeals section in this handbook for details on how to appeal against a decision of AAPoly.

The procedure for applying for Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) is as follows:

- 1. The student notifies of intention to apply for RPL during admissions. The students are referred to the Manager, VET Operations.
- 2. The Manager, VET Operations arranges a meeting with the student and Assessor to discuss the RPL requirements. The student is provided with the Skills Recognition Tool Kit.
- 3. Students who apply for RPL by using competencies gained through work experience must supply a document on the company letterhead stating:
  - place of employment;
  - name of employer/supervisor/manager;
  - contact details of the employer/supervisor/manager;
  - period of employment; and
  - specific job roles.
- 4. Students who apply for RPL using their life experience must be able to provide documentation to support their case.
- 5. The student submits the completed Skills Recognition Tool Kit along with the evidence portfolio to the Assessor.
- 6. The Assessor assesses the application based on the information and evidence submitted. The Assessor notifies the Manager, VET Operations of the outcome, who then forwards the documentation and indicate the assessment outcome to the Department Head, VET for final approval.
- 7. In some situations, the documents submitted by the student may not provide adequate information or may be from an unrecognised body. In order to qualify for RPL, the student may be required to complete gap training and demonstration (if applicable) if gaps are identified by the Assessor in the evidence portfolio provided. The Assessor will contact the student for a meeting to provide feedback and discuss the gap training and demonstration (if applicable) requirements.
- 8. The student will be informed of the outcome of the request in writing. A copy of the letter will be retained in the student's folder.
- 9. Students have the right to appeal in circumstances where they do not agree with the outcome of the request. Please refer to the Complaints and Appeals section in this handbook for details on how to appeal against a decision of AAPoly.

Students should note that the granting of RPL or CT may lead to the shortening of their course. If this happens, AAPoly will notify the Department of Home Affairs of the shortened course duration. The student may then need to either enrol in another full-time course or depart Australia when their (shortened) course finishes. The granting of RPL or CT does not affect the Department of Home Affairs' requirement that overseas students on a student visa must undertake a full-time study workload of 20 contact hours per week.

Students who wish to apply for RPL may do so by paying an RPL fee of \$100 per unit of competency, upon application.

For CT applications, there are no assessment fees.

## Higher Education (HE) Courses

Prospective students may apply for advanced standing in their admission to HE courses offered by AAPoly. The advanced standing application may be based on prior academic achievement, equivalent professional experience, or both.

The procedure for applying for course credit is as follows:

 The student submits to the Marketing Manager the signed and dated Credit Transfer Application Form or Skills Recognition Tool Kit to request Academic Credit Transfer or RPL into AAPoly's HE courses before course commencement. The application is submitted with all current and verifiable evidence of formal, non-formal and informal learning which relate to the learning outcomes of the course component/s for which block, specified or unspecified credit is sought.

The evidence may include the following documents:

- i. a certified copy of a vocational education and training (VET) certificate or HE testamur;
- ii. a certified copy of a HE academic transcript with final grades;
- iii. a certified copy of academic transcripts for completed VET qualifications;
- iv. course outlines showing content, learning outcomes and assessment requirements;
- v. subject guides for each of the HE subject presented for credit assessment; or
- vi. an explanation of the grading structure used by the issuing organisation;
- vii. curriculum vitae;
- viii. written evidence of relevant work experience including position descriptions and employer confirmation; and
- ix. recommendation letters or reference letters from employers.

**Note:** If any of the evidence supporting the application is not in English, the student must supply an English translation by a professional translator deemed acceptable by AAPoly. AAPoly reserves the right to refuse to accept a translation by a translator that it deems unacceptable.

- 2. The Marketing Manager then forwards the completed application form with the supporting documents to the Associate Dean (Education) for assessment.
- 3. A student should enrol in the course for which they are seeking credit while awaiting the notification of the outcome of their credit application. The students should consult with their Associate Dean (Education) as to an appropriate course progression plan. It is the responsibility of the student to manage their enrolment.
- 4. Where an application for Academic Credit Transfer or RPL is consistent with an established precedent or an articulation approved by the Academic Board, the Associate Dean (Education) assesses and approves the application within 5 working days of receipt of the application and accompanying documentation.
- 5. Applications for Academic Credit Transfer or RPL, where there are no current precedents or where they are based on relevant work experience, are assessed by the Associate Dean (Education) within 10 working days of receipt of the application and accompanying documentation.
- 6. Applications for specified credit based on work experience must include evidence of how the student's work experience maps to the Subject Learning Outcomes (SLOs) of the subjects for which credit is claimed, having regard to the relevant threshold standards and AQF level of the degree. The Associate

Dean (Education) may consider implementing verification measures (such as testing) to ensure that there is enough evidence to prove that student has met the SLOs before the credit is approved.

- 7. Students are informed, in writing, by the Student Services Officer (SSO) within 3 days after the credits have been finalised, of the outcome of the assessment on Academic Credit Transfer. Where a credit application is successful, AAPoly will require the student to sign and accept a record of credit granted. Student is also notified if the course duration is shortened as a result of the granting of credits. The signed record of the outcome and the student's acceptance will be stored in the student's file.
- 8. A student may elect not to receive some or all of the credit to which they are entitled by declining credit.
- 9. Students may appeal any decision. Refer to the Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure for further details.

Notes:

- AAPoly will only consider prior qualification(s) in an application for Academic Credit Transfer or RPL if the prior qualification(s) submitted for review is/are less than five years old from the time of enrolment.
- No credit is available for subjects or courses below AQF Level 5 and/or partially completed subjects or courses.
- A maximum of 50% of the total number of subjects in one (1) course can be considered for exemption in any of AAPoly's HE courses. For clarity, each student must study a minimum of 50% of the course to be eligible for the relevant qualification.
- Professional experience put forward in an application for Academic Credit Transfer and/or RPL will be judged on its relevance, extent and currency and will be assessed in consideration of the academic standards and requirements of the qualification. In the final analysis, AAPoly must be satisfied that prospective students demonstrate satisfactory knowledge and skills for admission as well as the capability to achieve the course's learning outcomes.
- Credit will be revoked by AAPoly where false or misleading information has been provided to obtain credits;
- Credit may be rescinded by AAPoly where determined applicable as a result of a change of course or major; or at the request of the student.

Please refer to the Academic Credit Transfer and Recognition of Prior Learning (HE) Policy and Procedure at <u>https://aapoly.edu.au/student-policies/</u> for more details.

# International Student Visa Conditions

For a full list of mandatory and discretionary student visa conditions please visit: <u>https://immi.homeaffairs.gov.au/visas/already-have-a-visa/check-visa-details-and-conditions/see-your-visa-conditions</u>

#### Monitoring Student Course Progress for VET Courses

AAPoly divides its academic calendar into four study periods. These study periods are named terms. Each term comprises of 9-10 weeks. Within these terms specific units are allocated to the student to make up a

full-time study workload of twenty (20) contact hours per week. The student's allocated units, detailed in the timetable, must be followed. A student wishing not to undertake the required study in a certain subject must obtain approval from the Course Coordinator within the first two weeks of the term.

If the student is in their last term of study, the full-time study workload of twenty (20) contact hours per week will be adjusted to reflect the remaining number of subjects/units of competency/modules that the student is required to complete to satisfy their course requirements.

To check that the student's course progress is satisfactory, AAPoly will monitor academic performance in each unit enrolment. Progress will be assessed throughout each unit and results will be collated at the end of every term. At the same time, AAPoly will also check the student's progress towards completion of the course within the specified duration. The student will be able to access academic results at the end of each term via Paradigm. A final assessment of the student's overall achievements will occur at the end of every term.

A student returning from leave is expected to meet course progress requirements. When a student returns from leave, they are expected to meet course progress and catch up on their studies in the following term. Failing to do so would trigger the reporting process, and any previous warning letters would also be counted towards the reporting cycle.

#### Satisfactory Course Progress for VET Students

To meet the requirement for satisfactory course progress, students enrolled in any course regardless of the duration must pass a minimum of 50% of the full-time study hours in a term. For example, out of 180 hours of allocated subjects in a term, student must pass a minimum of 90 hours.

Course progress is monitored based on the duration of the course a student is enrolled in.

Warning letters, such as Risk of Unsatisfactory Course Progress and Non-Compliant Rate of Course Progress, are sent to students by email. Intention to Report letters are also sent to students by email.

Please refer to the Monitoring Student Progress Policy and Procedure at <u>http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies</u> for more details.

#### Student at Risk and Academic Support Policy for HE Students

Please refer to the Student at Risk and Academic Support (HE) Policy and Procedure at <u>http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies</u> for more details.

The National Code 2018 (Standards 6 and 8) and the Higher Education Standards Framework (Standard 1.3.4) require AAPoly to offer reasonable support to overseas students, irrespective of their place or mode of study, at no additional cost to the overseas student and ensure there is sufficient staff, in addition to academic staff, to support and advise overseas students who request assistance and to monitor students' course progress, identify students at risk of not meeting course progress and assist and support students to complete their course within the planned study period of their eCoE.

AAPoly recognises there will be students who do not progress satisfactorily in their studies due to foreseen and unforeseeable reasons. AAPoly will monitor students' course progress and is committed to ensuring that such students are identified in the early stages of their difficulties and given the appropriate academic support to assist them in completing their studies within the planned study period.

Should a student be identified as at risk of not being successful in their course of study, by having less than 50% attendance rate by week 3, AAPoly will issue an early warning letter advising the student to contact the Associate Dean (Education) for a one-on-one meeting to discuss and arrange intervention strategies.

Should a student not comply with the agreed intervention strategies, they are issued with an Intention to Report (ITR) Letter via email to inform them of AAPoly's intention to report their breach to the Department of Education and the Department of Home Affairs via PRISMS. This letter will also inform the student of their right to appeal this decision within 20 working days.

If a student has failed more than 50% of the allocated subjects at the end of semester, AAPoly will issue a Non-compliant Rate of Course Progress Letter to the student via email, before the commencement of the following semester, indicating that they are at risk of not achieving satisfactory course progress. AAPoly will arrange an intervention meeting with the Associate Dean (Education) who will provide academic counselling. An individual learning plan will be developed that may include ongoing support from AAPoly's support services.

Should a student not comply with the agreed intervention strategies and/or fails more than 50% of the course requirements in the subsequent semester, they are issued with an Intention to Report (ITR) Letter, via email, to inform them of AAPoly's intention to report their breach to the Department of Education and the Department of Home Affairs via PRISMS. This letter will also inform the student of their right to appeal this decision within 20 working days.

Where the student chooses not to access the complaints and appeals processes within the 20 working days period, withdraws from the process, or the process is completed and results in a decision supporting AAPoly, AAPoly will notify the Department of Education and the Department of Home Affairs through PRISMS.

#### Assessment

Assessment is an extremely important part of the whole education process. The purpose of assessment is to evaluate what students have learned, how they are progressing, where any problems are, and ultimately, whether they meet the subject intended learning outcomes. AAPoly has flexible learning and assessment procedures.

Assessment is both formative and summative, and may take both formal and informal forms. The more formal assessments are tests, projects, presentations, assignments, workplace demonstrations and examinations. The form that assessment takes will depend on the competency or outcome being assessed, course requirements and any special needs of the students.

If a student has any special needs in relation to assessment, preparing for assessment, or understanding the assessment plan, they should notify their trainer or lecturer. They should also notify AAPoly upon induction and should tell their trainer about any special needs for the purposes of lesson or training delivery. The student needs to give AAPoly sufficient notice. Ideally, the student should inform the trainer of these when joining the class and remind them two weeks before the particular assessment event.

# Conduct of Assessments

#### **General Rules**

Unless the assessor directs students otherwise, the rules that shall apply to all formal examinations and assessments are as follows:

- Students must present their Student ID card to be eligible to sit the assessment/examination.
- It is the responsibility of each student to be on time for exams.
- Students must carry out the directions of the assessor.
- No student may leave the assessment/examination room in the first or last half hour.
- No student shall be readmitted to an assessment room unless they sought permission and were under supervision for the entire time of their absence.
- Students shall not behave in a disorderly or disruptive manner or in any way disrupt or disadvantage other students.
- Students are not permitted to talk to any other student upon entering or while they are in the assessment room.
- Students, upon taking their seat, must not get up or move without the permission of a supervisor.
- If students wish to speak to a supervisor, they should raise their hand and wait for the supervisor to come to them. They should then speak to the supervisor in a way that will not disrupt any students near them.
- Students may not bring any food, drink, cigarettes or chewing gum into the assessment room.
- Students shall not, during the period of the assessment, use or attempt to use any material, information or equipment unless it is specified on the assessment paper.

#### What Students Should Do

To maximise their performance in assessments all students should:

- be prepared for the assessment (i.e. have studied the topics being assessed, brought all the required equipment and material along and arrive at least 10 minutes before the assessment);
- advise their assessor immediately if there is any factor which will affect their performance in the assessment or if they have any special need;
- read the instructions on the exam and complete all the identification details;
- write legibly; and
- ensure that their fees are paid up according to AAPoly guidelines before sitting assessments.

AAPoly reserves the right to bar a student from taking assessments or to withhold results if there are fees outstanding.

#### Academic Misconduct

Academic misconducts include but are not restricted to cheating, contract cheating (ghost writing or academic work outsourcing), plagiarism, collusion and other forms of improper collaboration during the preparation of any prescribed assessment tasks. Student academic misconduct is prohibited and any

violations of the misconduct policy by students may result in academic penalties. Please refer to the Academic Misconduct and Plagiarism Policy available at <u>http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies</u>.

## Guidance on Academic Misconduct

Students must assume responsibility for maintaining honesty in all assessments submitted for credit and in any other assessments designated by the lecturer of the course in question.

#### First Offence

A warning letter will be issued to the student, and the student will receive a zero mark for the assessment task, stipulating that if the misconduct is repeated, further actions will be taken.

#### Second Offence

If the student repeats the act of academic misconduct, the Academic Review Committee will conduct an investigation. If the student admits to the offence or if the result of the investigation determines the student committed the offence, the student will receive a second warning letter and a zero mark in the subject. If the student does not admit plagiarism or disagrees with the decision, they can appeal within five (5) working days of being notified of the penalty decision, using the Academic Misconduct Appeal process.

#### Third Offence

If the student repeats the academic misconduct for the third time, the matter is referred to the Student Discipline Committee for investigation. If the student admits to the offence or if the result of the investigation determines the student committed the offence, the student is issued a final warning letter and will receive fail for the whole subject. If the student disagrees with the decision, they can appeal within five (5) working days of being notified about the penalty decision using the Academic Misconduct Appeal process.

#### Expulsion from the Course

If the student repeats the academic misconduct after the third time, the matter is referred to the Student Discipline Committee for investigation. The Student Discipline Committee may, if it is deemed appropriate, determine that the student should be expelled from the course. If the Student Discipline Committee decides to expel the student from the course, then the Chair will refer the matter, with recommendations, to the Chief Executive Officer, who will review the case within five (5) working days of receiving the report. If the outcome of the review requires the expulsion of the student, the DH-SS will act in accordance with the Deferment, Suspension or Cancellation of a Student's Enrolment Procedure to cancel the student's enrolment and report the student to the Department of Education via PRISMS. This record of penalty will be shown in the student's academic record.

#### Failure to Attempt an Assessment

Students who do not attempt an assessment without a valid reason will receive a Not Yet Competent mark.

However, AAPoly understands that there may be valid reasons why a student did not attempt an assessment. Students may apply for an alternative assessment or special consideration if, because of illness or other circumstances (not work-related) beyond their control, they:

- miss a formal assessment;
- attend an assessment but are forced to leave before the allocated time has expired;

- finish an assessment, but believe that their performance was affected; or
- have difficulty in completing an assessment.

To be considered, the students must:

- inform AAPoly as soon as is practicable and no later than two working days after the assessment; or
- inform the supervisor at the time, if they attempted any part of the assessment; **and** provide external independent evidence of the illness or misadventure in the form of a doctor's certificate from a registered medical practitioner or a Police Report or any other documentation that will support their application.

## **Reassessment for VET Students**

It is inevitable that some students will not meet the requirements of the assessment evidence. AAPoly's approach to these situations is to work with the student in order to address deficiencies and to build their skill and knowledge in preparation for additional assessment. This will be undertaken within the scheduled training plan or may be completed under alternative arrangements agreed between the student and the assessor.

Reassessment fees are as follows:

- Assessment Task/ Activity: \$100
- Exam/Test: \$150

## Attendance

All students are required to arrive punctually for classes and remain for the full duration of classes. There is a strong correlation between attendance and academic performance.

If for any reason students are unable to attend classes, they must contact AAPoly to inform the relevant teacher. Normally, twenty-four hours' notice is expected. If you are sick and cannot attend class, you need to see a Medicare registered doctor and ask for a medical certificate. Bring this to class and give it to your teacher within 7 days.

## **Current Address Details**

You are required, as one of your student visa conditions, to advise AAPoly of your Australian residential address within seven (7) days of arrival in Australia and must advise any changes of address within seven (7) days. There is a change of contact details form available from the reception.

It is also required that you always keep AAPoly informed of any change to your personal details, visa status, and emergency contact details.

# Scholarships and Awards

For detailed information about our scholarships and awards visit the following page of our website at <a href="http://www.aapoly.edu.au/scholarship">http://www.aapoly.edu.au/scholarship</a>

# **Student Administration Information**

#### **Paying Fees**

All course fees and charges are payable in Australian dollars in accordance with the current Fee Schedule. The fee schedule may change from time to time, therefore, students should confirm current course and other fees with the Student Services or Finance Departments. Once enrolled in a course, the course fees will remain the same for the normal duration of that course.

At a minimum, full term/semester course fees and charges must be paid in advance prior to issuing the CoE. Student course fees are safeguarded through the use of insurance and assurance schemes mandated by Australian Legislation.

Fees become liable at the enrolment date of each semester or term. Failure to pay fees by the enrolment date will have significant consequences including the possible cancellation of enrolment.

# Access and Equity

AAPoly is committed to access and equity for all students to ensure no student enrolled in its courses is disadvantaged. Policies on access and equity cover the following groups:

- Students with any form of physical disability (e.g. hearing, seeing)
- Gender
- People from non-English speaking backgrounds
- Students with a learning disability (e.g. dyslexia)
- Sexual Orientation

Students must provide information about their disabilities on their application forms. This will enable AAPoly to assess and understand support requirements. Students with known disabilities should contact the relevant Program Coordinator within the first two weeks of commencement of their course. AAPoly will, within limits, do its best to assist students with disabilities.

# Access to Student Records

AAPoly acknowledges and respects the privacy of all students. Student record files are maintained in strictest confidentiality. However, students do have a right of access to any personal information contained within their own student file in accordance with the Act and AAPoly's policies. Students wishing to gain access to information stored in their file, whether manually or electronically, should approach the Student Services Department. Note that AAPoly may be required to give some information to designated government authorities, such as the Department of Home Affairs, police or government regulators.

# **Privacy Policy**

As a registered training organisation (RTO), AAPoly collects students' personal information to process and manage their enrolment in a VET course.

Under the Privacy Act, AAPoly is not allowed to give an individual's information to any other person except for administration purposes and as required by law. The student's personal information protected by the Privacy Act includes the student's name, address, phone number, timetable and academic results.

## How Information is Collected

The type of information collected and held by AAPoly includes: personally identifiable information, including sensitive information, about students before, during and after the completion of training. Consent for student information is gained at application via the application and enrolment form.

Information may include:

- Student Name
- Current and previous address details
- Contact information
- Date of birth
- Gender
- Driver's License or other identification details
- Assessment results
- Passport information
- Relevant Visa (if applicable)
- File notes
- Records of previous training and qualifications
- Fee payment information, such as credit card details
- AVETMISS data
- Disability and special needs
- Unique Student Identifier

Students are required to declare that they understood AAPoly's use of personal information in the student agreement prior to enrolment.

Generally, information is provided to AAPoly by the individuals themselves. Individuals provide personal information over the phone, in person, online, via email and by completing various forms, including:

- General Course Enquiry (via AAPoly website or email)
- Online Enquiry (via AAPoly website or email)
- Application for Enrolment Form (may also include Visa data if applicable)
- Application for Recognition of Prior Learning
- Application for Credit Transfer
- Student Request Form
- Assessment Task Submission
- Unit Assessment Record
- Working with Children Check (if applicable)
- National Police Check (if applicable)

In some situations, information could be provided to AAPoly by a third party. Examples may include other RTOs and Education Agents.

## How We Hold Information

Depending on the circumstances, we may hold individual's information in either hardcopy or electronic form, or both. Our student database is held in either hardcopy or electronic format.

#### How Information is Used

AAPoly only uses information for its intended purpose. We use the student's personal information to enable us to deliver vocational education and training (VET) courses to the students, and otherwise, as needed, to comply with our obligations as an RTO. This includes the following:

- For data reporting, such as
  - the annual AVETMISS data collection
  - Quality indicator reporting (RTOs are required to collect and report their performance against the learner questionnaire and competency completion quality indicators to the Australian Skills Quality Authority).
- For internal purposes such as assessments policies, procedures and processes, risk management, program and assessment validation and moderation and staff training
- To identify and inform individuals of transitioning of training packages or qualifications in which they may be enrolled.

## Student Identifier

Students who enrol in AAPoly's courses are required to submit their USI. The USI is also used when issuing Statements of Attainment and Certificates.

#### Assessment Task Submission and Examination

Upon submission of assessment tasks or when taking an exam, students must indicate their name and student number as identification. Students are provided with a student number upon acceptance of their enrolment. In cases where students misplace their student number, they can request this information from Student Services. AAPoly will ask for evidence of identity before distribution of this information.

# Disclosure (Sharing)

Information collected or held by AAPoly will only be disclosed to third parties after written consent has been obtained by the individual or where required by law. This may include:

- The individual's authorised representative or legal advisors
- Government and Statutory Authorities where required by law
- National VET Regulator auditing purposes

AAPoly will make all reasonable effort to secure and protect confidential information from unlawful disclosure. No personally identifiable information will be disclosed by AAPoly without the consent of the individual(s) concerned.

AAPoly is required by law, under the National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 (Cth) (NVETR Act), to disclose the personal information we collect about you to the National VET Data Collection kept by the National Centre for Vocational Education Research Ltd (NCVER). The NCVER is responsible for collecting, managing, analysing and communicating research and statistics about the Australian VET sector.

We are also authorised by law (under the NVETR Act) to disclose students' personal information to the relevant state or territory training authority.

#### How the NCVER and Other Bodies Handle Your Personal Information

The NCVER will collect, hold, use and disclose the student's personal information in accordance with the law, including the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth) (Privacy Act) and the NVETR Act. The student's personal information may be used and disclosed by NCVER for purposes that include populating authenticated VET transcripts; administration of VET; facilitation of statistics and research relating to education, including surveys and data linkage; and understanding the VET market.

The NCVER is authorised to disclose information to the Australian Government, Department of Employment and Workplace Relations, Commonwealth authorities, State and Territory authorities (other than registered training organisations) that deal with matters relating to VET and VET regulators for the purposes of those bodies, including to enable:

- administration of VET, including program administration, regulation, monitoring and evaluation;
- facilitation of statistics and research relating to education, including surveys and data linkage; and
- understanding how the VET market operates, for policy, workforce planning and consumer information.

The NCVER may also disclose personal information to persons engaged by NCVER to conduct research on NCVER's behalf.

The NCVER does not intend to disclose your personal information to any overseas recipients. For more information about how the NCVER will handle your personal information please refer to the NCVER's Privacy Policy at <u>https://www.ncver.edu.au/privacy</u>

If you would like to seek access to or correct your information, in the first instance, you must contact AAPoly.

Department of Employment and Workplace Relations is authorised by law, including the Privacy Act and the NVETR Act, to collect, use and disclose your personal information to fulfil specified functions and activities. For more information about how the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations will handle your personal information, please refer to the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations VET Privacy Notice at <a href="https://www.dewr.gov.au/national-vet-data/vet-privacy-notice">https://www.dewr.gov.au/national-vet-data/vet-privacy-notice</a>

#### Surveys

Students may receive a student survey which may be run by a government department or a NCVER employee, agent, third-party contractor or another authorised agency. Students may opt out of the survey at the time of being contacted.

#### Contact Information

At any time, students may contact AAPoly by sending an email via <u>studentadmin@aapoly.edu.au</u> to:

- request access to your personal information;
- correct your personal information;
- make a complaint about how your personal information has been handled; or

• ask a question about this Privacy policy and procedure.

## Access and Requests for Information Correction

Individuals may request access to the personal information held and may also make requests to correct personal information if it is not accurate, up-to-date or complete. To protect the privacy of our students and the privacy of others, AAPoly allows students to change their personal information in the Student Management System.

In rare circumstances, and only where it is permitted under the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth), we may not be able to provide individuals with access to information; for example, where it will have an unreasonable impact upon the privacy of others, where it relates to legal proceedings between us through which the information would not otherwise be available, where it would be prejudicial to negotiations, where we are required by law to withhold the information or where it would reveal information relating to our commercially sensitive decision making processes. If we are unable to provide individuals with access, we will provide an explanation in writing within five working days.

#### Complaints

Individuals may make a complaint about how their personal information is handled, without incurring a fee (refer to the contact details below for access to these services).

There are three stages in the complaint-handling process:

- 1. The complaint is made directly to AAPoly in the first instance;
- the complaint may be taken to a recognised external dispute resolutions scheme (if applicable); and lastly
- 3. the complaint may be taken to the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC).

Individuals can contact AAPoly by phone, email, fax, or by visiting our office or sending a request or complaint to the address below. AAPoly undertakes to respond to the complainant within 10 working days. If the request or complaint takes longer to resolve, AAPoly provides individuals with a date by which they can expect a response.

Contact Information	
Phone	+61 3 8610 4100
Email	studentadmin@aapoly.edu.au
Address	Level 7, 628 Bourke St, Melbourne, VIC 3000
Website	www.aapoly.edu.au

#### **Protecting Personal Information**

To help protect the privacy of data and personal information that AAPoly collects and retains, AAPoly uses physical, technical and administrative safeguards. We update and test our security technology on an ongoing basis.

All employees undergo privacy training that emphasises the importance of confidentiality and the maintenance of student/employer privacy and security of personal information. Access to personal

information is restricted to employees who need it to provide benefits or services to students, also refer to the 'How information is used' section of this policy.

#### Website

AAPoly's website may contain links to other websites. Please be aware that AAPoly is not responsible for the privacy practices of such other sites. If individuals go to other websites, AAPoly advises caution and to read the related site's privacy policy.

## **Direct Marketing**

AAPoly practices ethical direct marketing. Where AAPoly is permitted to use or disclose personal information for the purpose of direct marketing, it must always allow an individual to request not to receive direct marketing communications (also known as 'opting out') and comply with that request. AAPoly will, on request, provide its source for an individual's personal information, unless it is impracticable or unreasonable to do so.

## Data Breaches

Security is a basic element of information privacy. In Australia, this principle is reflected in the Privacy Act 1988 and the Privacy Amendment (Enhancing Privacy Protection) Act 2012. AAPoly takes reasonable steps to protect the personal information held from misuse and loss and from unauthorised access, modification or disclosure.

Depending on the circumstances, those reasonable steps may include the implementation of data breach procedures; notification of the individuals who are or may be affected by a data breach; and notification to the OAIC.

Appropriate security safeguards for personal information need to be considered across a range of areas. This includes maintaining physical security, computer and network security, communications security and personnel security. To meet information security obligations, AAPoly undertakes the following activities:

• A privacy impact assessment, which evaluates, in a systemic way, the impact that a project (including a full range of activities and initiatives that may have privacy implications) might have on the privacy of individuals.

Privacy impact assessments are conducted in the planning and development stages of the project, and when changes to the project are being considered.

- Policy development which reviews and updates the policy that implements measures, practices and procedures to reduce the identified risks to information security.
- Staff training which trains staff and managers in security and fraud awareness, practices and procedures and codes of conduct.
- Notify the responsible person or position. The Executive Director is the designated position within the organisation to deal with data breaches. This position has responsibility for establishing policy and procedures, training staff, coordinating reviews and audits and investigating and responding to breaches.

# Social Media Use

Use of social media will be deemed as having connection with AAPoly if the social media account is used as an official AAPoly social media platform.

The students play a crucial part in creating positive experiences that will enhance their progress in learning and social interactions. They are expected to:

- be considerate to others and respect the privacy of others, as well as diversity of cultures, peoples and languages;
- communicate with courtesy and due care, verbally and in writing, in person and online (including through email and social media);
- refrain from actions, behaviour and words that may jeopardise their own or another person's health, safety or wellbeing, or may damage their reputation or career;
- respect the moral and physical boundaries when interacting with one another and refrain from participating in any physical or mental exchange which can be offensive, intimidating or humiliating to others such as sexual harassment or assault, abuse and other harmful misconduct;
- inform their Lecturer/Trainer if they see discrimination, harassment, victimisation or bullying happening during their studies at AAPoly; and
- only use AAPoly facilities and resources (including information and communications technology) responsibly, in accordance with relevant policies and in consideration of other students' needs.

Students are expected to make earnest efforts to:

- understand and apply the rules about plagiarism and copyright;
- not engage or collude in fraudulent behaviour such as cheating during examinations, which includes the use of prohibited materials or equipment, or consultation with other students during the examination;
- undertake their academic work with integrity and honesty, avoiding plagiarism, collusion and breaches of copyright;
- seek help from their Lecturer/Trainer as soon as they realise need more support, instead of resorting to dishonesty in submitting work that is not entirely theirs;
- provide accurate personal details and the necessary updates to AAPoly;
- ensure their Student Access Card is used only by themselves and carry it at all times while on campus for identification purposes and access to facilities.

In addition, when using social media in the context of education or research training, and when making identifiable personal use of social media, students must NOT:

- make any comment or post material that is, or might be construed to be, racial or sexual harassment, offensive, obscene (including pornography), defamatory, discriminatory towards any person, or inciting hate;
- make any comment or post material that creates, or might be construed to create, a risk to the health or safety of a student, contractor, staff member or other person, including material that amounts to bullying, psychological or emotional violence, coercion, harassment, sexual harassment, aggressive or abusive comments or behaviour, and/or unreasonable demands or undue pressure;
- make any comment or post material that infringes copyright, is fraudulent, breaches intellectual property rights, constitutes a contempt of court, constitutes stalking, breaches a court order, or is otherwise unlawful;
- imply that they are authorised to speak as a representative of AAPoly, or give the impression that the views they express are those of AAPoly;
- use the identity or likeness of another student, contractor, staff member or other stakeholder of AAPoly;

- use or disclose any AAPoly confidential information obtained as a student of AAPoly;
- sell, purchase or offer to write assignments or other assessable work, or to request help with such work. Furthermore, students are required to take steps to minimise opportunities for others to cheat by, for example, not saving work to a shared network drive that is accessible by others and not sharing work on social media sites;
- make any comment or post material that might otherwise cause damage to AAPoly's reputation or bring it into disrepute; and
- use AAPoly's logo without permission, or use AAPoly's name in a manner that is likely to be misleading or bring AAPoly into disrepute.

Students must use AAPoly's computer facilities and network in an ethical and responsible manner by

- respecting the rights and privacy of others;
- not sending offensive or anonymous messages, including malicious remarks, hate speeches and hoaxes;
- not accessing pornographic, offensive, violent or other inappropriate materials;
- not degrading, corrupting or damaging the hardware, software, equipment or the integrity of the network; or
- not installing unauthorised software, altering the network configuration or using network resources in a manner that contradicts instructions given by the network administrator.

Students who do not comply with the expectations set out in this policy may face disciplinary actions which, in serious cases, may result in exclusion from AAPoly. AAPoly applies a zero-tolerance approach to harmful misconduct including (but not limited to) sexual harassment or abuse, physical or verbal bullying and violence.

# **Refund Policy**

Please refer to the latest refund policy and procedure at <u>http://www.aapoly.edu.au/student-policies</u> This refund policy does not remove the student's right to take further action under Australia's consumer protection laws. In addition, AAPoly's grievance resolution process does not inhibit the student's right to pursue other legal remedies.

- Any request for refund must be forwarded in writing to AAPoly via email to <u>studentadmin@aapoly.edu.au</u>, using the Credit/Refund Form (found in <u>https://aapoly.edu.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/AAPoly-Refund-Form.pdf</u>) and signed by the student.
   Note: If the student is withdrawing from AAPoly, the student must complete and submit the Withdrawal of Enrolment Form along with the Credit/Refund Form and any relevant supporting documents.
- 2. AAPoly will pay the refund within twenty (20) working days after receiving the Credit/Refund Form from the student, complete with all the relevant supporting documents. A statement explaining how the refund was calculated will accompany the payment to the student. Refunds will not be processed if supporting documentation is incomplete.
- 3. Where a refund is due, the refund amount will be calculated as per the refund procedure (referred to in page 10).
- 4. Refunds will be paid to the student, unless written authorisation is given by the student nominating another party.

5. Where a student is dissatisfied with a decision to provide or not to provide a refund, they may appeal that decision in accordance with the Complaints and Appeals Process.

#### Student Default

A student is not eligible for a refund in the event of a student default. Situations of student default include the following:

- a. The student fails to pay an amount they were liable to pay AAPoly, directly or indirectly, in order to undertake the course;
- b. The student breaches a condition of their student visa;
- c. The student fails to start the course on the agreed starting day or attend classes and fails to inform AAPoly in writing;
- d. Misbehaviour by the student; or
- e. The student withdraws from the course after course commencement.

#### Defaults by AAPoly

- 1. Tuition Fees and any administration fees will be refunded in full where:
  - a. The course does not start on the agreed starting day;
  - b. The course ceases to be provided at any time after it starts but before it is completed;
  - c. The course is not provided in full to the student because a sanction has been imposed on the registered provider by the authorities; or
  - d. The student has not withdrawn before the default day.
- In the unlikely event that AAPoly is unable to deliver the course in full, AAPoly will notify the Tuition Protection Service (TPS) Director within three (3) working days of the Provider default and will have a period of fourteen (14) days to satisfy its tuition protection obligations in relation to an affected student.
- 3. The student will be offered a place in a suitable alternative course at AAPoly or another provider, at no extra cost to the student, or will be provided with a refund of all unexpended prepaid tuition fees. The refund will be paid to the student within ten (10) working days from which the course ceased being provided. The refund will be paid directly to the student or another person who has been authorised by the student in writing.
- 4. The student has the right to choose whether to receive a refund of the unexpended prepaid tuition fees, or accept a place in another course at AAPoly or at another provider.
- 5. If AAPoly is unable to provide a refund or placement in an alternative course, or if it appears to the TPS Director that AAPoly is unlikely to satisfy its tuition protection obligations, the student will have access to an on-line placement facility under the TPS. If a student requires any assistance with the placement process, a TPS Administrator or service provider will be available to help the student to place them in a suitable alternative course, or if this is not possible, they will be eligible for a refund as calculated by the TPS Director.

#### Visa refusal

Where a visa application is refused before commencement of the course, the amount of the refund payable by AAPoly is the sum of both tuition and non-tuition fees received by AAPoly in respect of the student (the course fees), less a small amount to account for administrative costs that AAPoly may have incurred in enrolling the student and undertaking other activities in preparation for providing the course to the student. The small amount of course fees that AAPoly will retain on account of administrative costs is:

a. 5% of the amount of course fees received; or

b. \$500; whichever is less.

Note: The student payment for the Overseas Student Health Cover is separately processed and refunded in full by AAPoly's partner health insurance provider BUPA.

Where a visa application is refused after commencement of the course, the refund amount of the tuition fee paid in advance is calculated as follows:

Refund amount = weekly tuition fee x weeks in default period

In both circumstances, the student must show proof of refusal and evidence of payment to AAPoly. However, AAPoly is not required to provide a refund if the visa was refused for incidences that directly or indirectly caused the student to default:

- student's failure to start the course on the agreed starting day;
- the student's withdrawal from the course; or
- the student's failure to pay an amount that he or she was liable to pay AAPoly in order to undertake the course.

## Withdrawal from Course of Study

The student must notify AAPoly of their request to withdraw from their course by completing the Withdrawal of Enrolment Form and Credit/Refund Form, if the student is also requesting a refund, and submit the form(s) via email to <u>studentadmin@aapoly.edu.au</u>. A withdrawal administration fee of \$250 must be paid for every withdrawal request submitted. The refund amount for course withdrawal will be calculated based on the date the Withdrawal of Enrolment Form provided and all relevant documentation was received by AAPoly, and will be calculated as indicated in the following tables:

Before commencement of course	
More than 4 weeks before	70% refund of tuition fees paid in advance (For AAPoly's HE courses: 70% refund of tuition fees paid in advance less HE
course	Application Fee (non-refundable))
commencement 4 weeks or less	50% refund of tuition fees paid in advance
before course commencement	(For AAPoly's HE courses: 50% refund of tuition fees in advance paid less HE Application Fee (non-refundable))

#### After commencement of course

No refund of tuition fees paid in advance

#### No Refunds

In the event of a withdrawal from the course, no refund will be given for the following payments:

- a. Administration/Registration Fees or any non-refundable fees such as BTHM/BBUS Application Fee, unless specified otherwise.
- b. Fees used to purchase goods and services from other service providers (i.e. Book Fee, Knife Kit, etc.) unless not provided to the student.

# Cancellations, Deferrals and Suspension

Standard 9 of the National Code allows students to defer commencement of studies, take a leave of absence or temporarily suspend their studies during their course. This must be completed through a formal agreement with their registered provider. As these absences may affect the student's VISA, the students must be advised of this.

Students who wish to defer studies before commencement need to inform their Marketing Manager as soon as possible.

Students who wish to apply for leave of absence (LOA) should do so by completing a Leave of Absence Form at least 2 weeks in advance, where possible, and submit it to Student Services. In their application, they should state clearly their reasons for leave and provide copies of any documents that will help support their application. Please refer to the Deferment, Suspension or Cancellation of a Student's Enrolment Policy and Procedure at <a href="https://aapoly.edu.au/student-policies/">https://aapoly.edu.au/student-policies/</a>

#### Definitions

**Deferment:** A request by the student prior to the commencement of the study period to temporarily postpone study. (Student initiated).

**Leave of Absence (LOA):** A request by the student to temporarily postpone study after the commencement of the study period. (Student initiated suspension of enrolment).

**Suspension:** When the enrolment of a student in their course of study is suspended by AAPoly, for a period of time, after which the student may recommence study. (AAPoly initiated suspension of enrolment).

**Cancellation:** Cancellation of the student enrolment at AAPoly which will lead to the cancellation of the eCoE, for international students. (AAPoly initiated cancellation of enrolment).

## **Extenuating Circumstances**

As per the National Code relating to the welfare of students, these may include, but are not limited to the following. The student:

- refuses to maintain approved care arrangements (only for students under 18 years of age);
- is missing;
- has medical concerns, severe depression or psychological issues which lead the provider to fear for the student's wellbeing;
- has engaged or threatens to engage in behaviour that is reasonably believed to endanger the student or others; or
- is at risk of committing a criminal offence.

## Compassionate or Compelling Circumstances

As per the National Code, these are circumstances generally beyond the control of the student and which have an impact upon the student's course progress or wellbeing. These could include, but are not limited to:

• serious illness or injury, where a medical certificate states that the student was unable to attend classes;

- bereavement of close family members such as parents or grandparents (where possible a death certificate should be provided);
- major political upheaval or natural disaster in the home country requiring emergency travel and this has impacted on the student's studies;
- where the registered provider was unable to offer a pre-requisite unit; or
- inability to begin studying on the course commencement date due to delay in receiving a student visa.

Additionally, a traumatic experience, which could include:

- involvement in, or witnessing of a serious accident; or
- witnessing or being the victim of a serious crime, and this has impacted on the student (these cases should be supported by police or psychologists' reports).

Note:

- Postponing studies for a study period to go home to be married is not normally considered to be a compassionate or compelling circumstance which is beyond the control of the student. It is recommended that student plans wedding during the term breaks.
- In a packaged offer, the student's inability to complete their preceding courses is not normally considered to be a compassionate or compelling circumstance which is beyond the control of the student.

#### AAPoly Initiated Suspension

Students may be suspended from studies on the grounds listed below:

- Misbehaviour
- Poor Academic Performance (covered under the Monitoring Student Course Progress policies and procedures).

Students will be notified in writing of the decision. Students will be advised that this suspension may have an impact on their student visa and that they have 20 working days in which to access the appeals process.

The suspension cannot take effect until the internal appeals process is completed unless extenuating circumstances relating to student welfare apply.

Upon completion of the process above, the Department of Home Affairs will be notified of the suspension of the student's enrolment, which may result in the student visa being cancelled by the Department of Home Affairs.

#### Withdrawal

Students notify AAPoly of their intention to withdraw on a Withdrawal Form, available from the reception area. The cancellation of the student's enrolment will be according to the date on the withdrawal form.

Failure to re-enrol within the appropriate time period will be considered as a notification of withdrawal from the student.

Part of the withdrawal process is the cancellation of a student's eCoE. This may result in the Department of Home Affairs cancelling the student's visa. Students are advised to contact the Department of Home Affairs regarding this.

# AAPoly Initiated Cancellation

Students' enrolment may be cancelled from studies on the grounds listed below:

- Severe and/or repeated misbehaviour;
- Poor academic performance (covered under the Monitoring Student Course Progress policies and procedures);
- Failure to maintain appropriate attendance levels (covered under the Attendance Monitoring Policies); or
- Failure to pay fees within the relevant periods.

Students will be notified in writing of the decision. Students will be advised that this cancellation will have an impact on their student visa and that they have 20 working days to access AAPoly's appeals process.

The cancellation cannot be processed until the internal appeals process is completed unless extenuating circumstances relating to student welfare apply.

On completion of the process above, the Department of Home Affairs will be notified of the cancellation of the student's enrolment. This may result in their student visa being cancelled by the Department of Home Affairs. Students should contact the Department of Home Affairs within 28 days as advised in the notification of cancellation.

# Transfer between Registered Providers

Under National Code 2018, transfer between registered providers within the first 6 months of the primary program in a study package requires a transfer approval.

To apply to transfer, students should discuss their case with their Program Coordinator and/or the Student Counsellor.

- To apply to transfer to another provider within the first 6 months of the Student's Principal Program, the student must demonstrate 'exceptional circumstances' justifying the transfer. Exceptional Circumstances include:
  - Medical reasons e.g. recent hospital admission; serious injury; debilitating illness; severe anxiety or depression.
  - Loss or bereavement e.g. death of a close family member, or close friend; family or relationship breakdown.
  - Hardship/trauma e.g. recent victim of crime; sudden loss of income or employment; severe disruption to domestic arrangements.
  - Educational progression problems that cannot be addressed by the provider's resources.
- 2. Subject to the above, an Application for Transfer on the grounds of Exceptional Circumstances may be demonstrated by providing sufficient specific detailed evidence with relevant supporting documentation to support the Application, such as:
  - a medical certification stating in reasonable detail:
    - the dates of any relevant consultations or attendances;
    - if relevant, the nature of the complaint and the treatment; and
    - a specific statement that in the health care professional's opinion (not the student's opinion) that, as a result of the complaint or treatment, the student should be transferred.
  - a police report or statutory declaration.

• other relevant supporting documentation.

All documentation will be held in confidence and will be stored to ensure privacy.

No transfer will be granted where:

- 1. the student has not completed the first four weeks of the principal program in which they are enrolled;
- 2. the HE Institution or its nominated officer forms the view that the student is trying to avoid being reported to the Department of Home Affairs for failure to meet AAPoly's attendance or course progress requirements;
- 3. the transfer may jeopardise the student's progression through a package of programs;
- 4. the transfer would be detrimental to the student's future study and/or career objectives;
- the student has not accessed the university's or, in the case where a student is studying at a partner provider, the partner provider's student support or welfare services after having been requested to do so;
- 6. the documents provided by the student do not, in the university's or its nominated officer's view, provide adequate grounds to justify the transfer; or
- 7. the student has outstanding debts to the university.

Applying to Transfer Between Registered Providers does not preclude students from the requirement to enrol on time. Non-enrolment will not automatically result in a Transfer Between Registered Providers, it will however result in the student being reported via PRISMS for failing to enrol.

Students should submit an application together with a letter of offer from the new provider and a letter explaining why they want to change and any evidence to back up the information provided.

# Textbooks

Students are required to purchase textbooks appropriate to their course and level. Please refer to the subject guides and seek assistance where necessary from the library.

Supplementary materials may also be provided in the classroom.

# Victorian Student Number (VSN)

The Victorian Student Number (VSN) is a student identification number that is assigned by the Department of Education and Early Childhood Development to all students in government and non-government schools, and students in Vocational Education and Training colleges. The number, which is unique to each student, is used as a key identifier on a student's record and remains with the student throughout their education, until the student reaches the age of 25. The VSN is nine digits long, randomly assigned, and tied to information that identifies the student (name, gender, date of birth, etc.).

For more information regarding the VSN, please visit the following website: <u>https://www.vcaa.vic.edu.au/administration/schooladministration/student-</u><u>numbers/Pages/Index.aspx?Redirect=1</u>

# Unique Student Identifier (USI)

The USI is a reference number made up of numbers and letters that gives students access to their USI account. It serves the purpose of linking an individual's USI account to the National Vocational Education

and Training (VET) Data Collection allowing an individual to see all of their training results from all providers including all completed training units and qualifications. This ensures that students can easily access and compile their VET achievements into a single authenticated transcript, preventing the loss of their VET records.

It should be noted that the USI is distinct from the Student Number assigned by the College. Students enrolling in AAPoly's courses must submit their USI. All students, unless exempt, must have a USI before AAPoly can issue a Statement of Attainment (SoA) or Qualification Certificate upon the successful completion of a course.

New or continuing students undertaking nationally recognised courses and higher education students in a Commonwealth supported place or graduating in 2023 and beyond are required to have a USI.

The USI will be available online and at no cost to the student. This USI will stay with the student for life and be recorded with any nationally recognised VET course that is completed from when the USI came into effect on 1 January 2015. For more information, please visit <u>https://www.usi.gov.au/</u>

# Studiosity

A key academic support resource available at AAPoly to help students succeed is the Studiosity service. With this service you can submit your assessment drafts and get feedback from live tutors. It is a great way to improve your writing and feel confident about your assessment prior to submitting the assessment to your lecturers. Studiosity tutors give you personalised information on the following points:

- Essay structure: including introduction, linking sentences, body paragraphs, and conclusion.
- Language choice: is your language appropriate for the type of assignment you are working on e.g. persuasive essay, speech, critical analysis or report.
- **Development of ideas**: including whether you have adequately answered the question.
- Referencing: advice correctly referencing and avoiding plagiarism
- **Grammar and spelling**: the Studiosity tutors will pick up any mistakes you have made and help you understand how to avoid them in the future.

# **Campus and Facilities**

AApoly campuses are situated in the CBD giving students easy access to transport, off-campus libraries, legal centres, medical centres, and an opportunity to engage beyond the classroom with museums, theatres, shops and parks.

AApoly also houses its own libraries providing students physical and online learning resources which includes books, journals, magazines, and a variety of scholarly publications. Printing / copying cards can be purchased in the library. The initial cost is \$5.00 which comes with a \$5.00 worth of credit. Students can easily top up printing cards at the coin kiosk machine in the library. The machine accepts all coins and notes. The cost for printing is \$0.10 cents for black & white (per side) and \$0.50 cents for colour (per side).

AApoly has ample teaching and learning spaces which includes computer labs for students to do their assignments and for self-study purposes. The lecture rooms are equipped with the necessary technological infrastructure and digital support to cater to the teaching and learning needs for each course.

Students also have access to comfortable lunchroom equipped with refrigerators, microwaves, water coolers and eating areas. There are also student lounges with computers and online access so students can relax and study at the same time.

# **Library Services**

AAPoly provides appropriate learning resources for all students including those with special needs. AAPoly campuses have physical libraries as well an online library accessible to students. Any AAPoly student wishing to borrow books may approach the Library Staff in the Library between 9:00am - 5:00pm on weekdays.

You will be required to present your student identification card when borrowing books.

There is a diverse range of information resources available both in the Library and via the Library website. The Library website can be accessed through the student LMS (Learning Management System). Students have access to a range of learning support services to help with the requirements of their course and mode of study. AAPoly's Information Resource Coordinator can provide guidance on the available information resources and can help improve information and digital literacy.

All required subject-based resources can be found either in our physical Library spaces or via our expanding online collection. Electronic journals, newspapers, eBooks, digital magazines, videos, and images are available through online research databases provided by EBSCO, GALE, SAGE and JSTOR.

More general learning resources to support students' English language development, personal development, or recreational pursuits are also available either in the Library or via the Library website.

Libraries off-campus that students may find useful include the following:

**The City Library (Melbourne)** - located on Flinders Lane. Students are welcome to become members and access the library range of books, videos, DVDS, computers and online material.

**The State Library of Victoria** - located nearby on the corner of Swanston and La Trobe Street. The library houses a significant amount of on-line and print based resources which can be printed and copied for learning purposes.

**The City of Sydney Library** - located at 31 Alfred Street, Circular Quay, NSW 2000 or 744 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000 – both of which are located near our campus in Sydney.

**The State Library of New South Wales** - a large reference and research library open to the public on the corner of Macquarie Street and Shakespeare Place, Sydney. Students can take part in free research orientation programs and self-guided visits. There are also tailored sessions for help with coursework or research degrees. Students can book a one-on-one consultation for help with a tricky research question.

All of the above libraries are located near to our Melbourne and Sydney campuses.

# **Computer Laboratories**

How to Access the Computer on Arrival

- 1. Your "User Name" is your 6-digit AAPoly Student ID number (e.g. 202012345).
- 2. Your default "Password" is your 6-digit AAPoly Student ID number typed in twice with no space in between (e.g. 202012345202012345).

- 3. You will be prompted with a message advising that you are required to change your password. Click the OK button
- 4. In the "New Password" field, type in your preferred password. Choose a password which is at least 7 characters long. You may use the combination of numbers and letters (Eg: a1b2c3d4).
- 5. Retype your new password in the "Confirm New Password" field and then click the 'OK' button.
- 6. You will be prompted with 'Your password has been changed' confirmation message. Click 'OK'.
- 7. You are now in the process of logging into the network.
- 8. A "User Usage Policies" window will pop up. Please read through it carefully.
- 9. Click "Yes" if you agree or "No" if you do not agree to the usage policies.
- 10. If "Yes" is clicked, then the computer will continue your login process. It will take a couple of minutes to provide network printer and network drive settings. Please wait until the login process is completed before using the computer.
- 11. If "No" is clicked, then the system will automatically log you off. You will not be allowed to use the computer or any of the resources the network may provide for your benefits.

#### Note:

- For security reasons, if you have tried to login for more than 3 times unsuccessfully then the system will automatically lock you out of the network. Please report to reception for assistance.
- The procedure above is identical to the change of network password procedure. If a student has been requested to change their password, then please follow the procedure in this document. The student's current password will be reverted back to the default AAPoly ID password as stated above.

#### Student Email Account

With AAPoly moving to cloud storage, all AAPoly students will be offered education Google accounts that include Gmail and Google Drive with unlimited storage capacity. Please read the instructions on how to log in (below), so you can upload your content from the home drive (H) to Google Drive or another cloud platform of your preference. From 12 October 2018, home drive access has been disabled. The new accounts will give you access to all Google apps online. Having an education email will provide you with a wide variety of benefits, including free software and packages and heavily discounted student prices.

How to log in to your Gmail account:

- 1. On your browser, type in https://mail.google.com, or on your mobile, open the Gmail App.
- Type in your AAPoly email address, which is your student number followed by @aapoly.edu.au. Make sure to add the aapoly.edu.au otherwise it will login as a google.com account.
   e.g.201xxxxx@aapoly.edu.au
- 3. Next, type in your default password, which is your date of birth YYYYMMDD. e.g. **19901231**
- 4. Once logged in, you will be asked to change your password. Make a new password and enter your phone number and a recovery email address. Click 'done'.

# Calendar of Events (Social Activities)

Annual or semester-ending events are organised by the various Department Heads. Trips and activities are planned throughout the year and students are encouraged to participate.

# Timetables

Timetables will be provided at enrolment and will be displayed on notice boards and on the LMS. Timetables are also available on our website to support online enrolment.

# **Student Notice Boards**

There are a variety of notice boards in all campuses. These are often used to convey information to students.

# Academic Support and Expectations

There is a comprehensive range of academic skills programs/services that will ensure students have the opportunities to be successful in their studies. Academic skills services will not only facilitate the learning experience but also support academic research, discovery and blended learning. The support will enable students to be confident learners and have the skills and techniques to source and research quality and relevant material. Those students who want to progress to further studies will have a foundation in research methods and skills through course and curriculum.

The range of support resources available include:

- Academic skills assistance and support material via the LMS;
- Discipline based content workshops (offered as an integrated component of the curriculum and outside class hours to assist student to develop a broader base of learning and content understanding);
- Turnitin an academic integrity verification tool;
- Learning and Academic Skills programs;
- A range of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) support services to assist students in being able to maximise their use of the available tools and technologies (whether on their own devices or those on campus). Self-help guides are available that introduce students to the ICT infrastructure and troubleshooting support information; and
- For both the information and ICT resources, specialised members of staff are available to provide both students and staff with training and support online and face-to-face.

AAPoly's Learning and Academic Skills programs help students develop skills required for tasks, including:

- understanding assignment tasks/analysing the question;
- adhering to the structure of essays, reports and oral presentations;
- using databases, search engines and other tools to research;
- sourcing and researching quality and relevant material;
- adhering to APA referencing and applying strategies to avoid plagiarism;
- using academic language such as linking words, phrases and sentence starters;
- editing one's own writing and using the plagiarism-detection service, Turnitin; and,
- exam preparation.

## Copyright

All the necessary regulations as set out in the Copyright Amendment Act 1989 and any further amendments must be observed when copying material in which copyright exists.

If making photocopies, irrespective of where the copying is done, the following limits apply:

- Articles in a periodical publication one article in an issue of a periodical can be copied. Two or more articles contained in the same issue of the publication may be copied if the articles relate to the same specific subject matter.
- Anthology (a literary or dramatic work contained in a published anthology, and comprising not more than 15 pages of the anthology) the whole article or part of that work can be copied.
- All other copying of literary, dramatic, musical or artistic work a "reasonable portion" of the work can be copied. A "reasonable portion" is deemed to be no more that 10% of the pages in the edition, or one chapter (if the work is divided into chapters), whichever is the greater.
- Artistic works can be copied together with the text they explain or illustrate. If copied separately, the whole of an artistic work can be copied if it has not been separately published. If it has been separately published, the whole can be copied ONLY if the provisions relating to out of print and unavailable works apply.
- Diagrams, maps and tables are considered to be artistic works and can be subject to copyright in their own right. They can be copied together with the text they explain or illustrate. If they are copied separately, the provisions relating to artistic works apply.

# Health and Safety on Campus

# **Emergency Evacuation Procedures (All Campuses)**

The safety of our staff and students is very important to AAPoly. For this reason, fire drills (practice) are conducted by AAPoly on a regular basis. If you hear a fire alarm, do not panic – it could just be a drill. Do not use the lifts when an alarm is sounding as it can be very dangerous.

Should an evacuation become necessary, please remain calm and follow the instructions of your teacher and the wardens (wearing yellow or red hat) at all times. You will be given more specific instructions about the emergency procedures at your campus at orientation.

# Types of Health Care in Australia

The Australian healthcare system is mixed. Responsibilities for healthcare are divided between the Federal and State governments, and both the public and the private sectors play a role. Government programs underpin the key aspects of healthcare. Medicare, which is funded out of general tax revenue, pays for hospital and medical services. Medicare covers all Australian citizens, pays the entire cost of treatment in a public hospital, and reimburses doctor visits.

### **Public System**

The major provider of healthcare services in Australia is the Public Health System (Medicare). The Public Health System provides a comprehensive free-of-charge healthcare service for all Australian citizens covering both hospital-based and community-based medical services. Public hospitals are owned by the State. One of the problems with such a system is that waiting times in public hospitals can be extensive due to a shortage of healthcare professionals and facilities.

See also 'Attending an Australian Hospital' below.

#### **Private System**

Private hospitals provide about a quarter of all hospital beds in Australia. Private medical practitioners provide most non-bed medical services and perform a large proportion of hospital services alongside salaried doctors. Most dental services are provided by private practitioners. For Australians who take out

private health insurance, a range of services can be covered, such as access to your own doctor in a private hospital, and extra services such as dental, optical and physiotherapy.

# Attending an Australian Hospital

Few private hospitals have emergency departments, so, in an emergency, most Australians rely on the public hospital system. If you attend an Emergency Department in a hospital you will be attended to immediately by a triage nurse for information about you, your cover, and your current health condition. The triage nurse will determine the urgency of your condition in comparison to others in need in the emergency room and it is likely that you will remain at the emergency room for several hours. Whether you are seen immediately by a doctor, or have to wait, it is customary to keep you in the emergency room for several hours to monitor your condition before releasing you to go home, or admitting you to hospital in more severe cases.

There are extensive waiting times for elective surgeries at public hospitals, e.g. for orthopaedic surgery. One of the attractions of health insurance is the ability to bypass public hospital waiting lists and go through the private system.

Private hospitals are very expensive for treatment and hospitalisation. Your OSHC will cover some of the cost of some private hospitals but you will have to pay the difference.

Your health insurance (OSHC) covers the total cost of accommodation in a shared ward of a public hospital. It also pays the 'schedule fee' for the doctor, but you will have to pay the difference if the doctor's fee is higher than the 'schedule fee'.

See also 'Public Hospital Waiting Times' below.

# General Practitioners (GPs)

In Australia you do not have to go to a hospital to see a doctor. You can see a doctor (also known as a GP – General Practitioner) in their private practice or medical centre, with part or the entire doctor's fee being covered by Medicare or OSHC. You must make an appointment to see a GP. It is important to note that some GP surgeries will request full payment from you at the time of consultation and you will need to present the receipt to claim the rebate back from your health cover provider.

# **Medical Services**

### What do I do if I'm sick?

Choose a doctor from the list of medical facilities in this handbook or other another trusted source and phone the GP's surgery or medical centre to make an appointment. If you have woken in the morning feeling unwell and would like to see a doctor that day, you will need to phone the doctor's surgery early in the morning (8:00am – 8:30am) for an appointment. Please note however, that it may not be possible to get an appointment on the same day - you may have to wait one or two days before you can see a doctor (in some regional areas of Australia it may be a week or two before you can get an appointment).

### Seeing a Doctor

When you attend your appointment, the doctor will ask you questions about your health and may give you a brief physical examination, such as checking your breathing, your throat, ears etc. The doctor will then give you some advice regarding management of your illness and may give you a prescription for some medication. If you have had or need to take time off studies you will need to get a medical certificate from

the doctor to provide to your education provider. If your illness is more serious or the doctor is unsure of a diagnosis, they may refer you for further tests e.g. blood tests or x-rays, or to see a specialist doctor. It is important to note that if you are dissatisfied with the diagnosis or service of the doctor you see, you have the right to obtain an opinion from another doctor.

### **Public Hospital Waiting Times**

If you cannot get an appointment with a GP and want to go to a public hospital to see a doctor, you may find a public hospital which has a general practice clinic attached. If not, and you attend an emergency room to see a doctor, be prepared to wait a very long time. It is not uncommon to wait more than 3 hours, and at some hospitals you could wait as long as **5-6 hours** to see a doctor. It is common practice for a doctor or a nurse to make an initial assessment of your condition when you first arrive to prioritise the emergencies in the hospital. You will be seen as soon as the most urgent patients have been attended to. It is also common to remain in the emergency room for some time after a doctor has attended to you before you are instructed you can leave. Emergency department rules may include keeping you a little longer to observe you and ensure that your condition does not change, and it is safe to send you home with the recommended treatment. It is the same for all patients – international students and Australian citizens alike.

### Pharmacies

GP surgeries do not have medications to dispense to you. You must take the prescription given to you by the doctor to a pharmacy or chemist to obtain the medication. You will need to provide the pharmacy with your OSHC card, your full name and address. You are able to walk in off the street to any pharmacy/chemist/drug store in Australia and will only have to wait a short while for your prescription medicine to be prepared.

### **Prescription Medication**

Medication prescribed by your doctor is not free. You must pay the pharmacy. Please check with your OSHC provider if you can claim any money for medication. Many pharmacists will offer you the option of having a "generic" brand of medicine. If the prescription medicine the doctor has prescribed is also made available by a company which produces generic brands at cheaper prices, this option will be offered to you. This is ONLY offered if the content of the medicine is exactly the same as that prescribed by your doctor. It will, however, assist you to pay less for your medicine.

### **Over-the-Counter Medication**

Pharmacies/chemists also provide a variety of over-the-counter medications useful for treating colds, headaches, allergies and the like which do not require a prescription. Ask the pharmacist on duty for advice regarding the best medication for your symptoms. Ensure that you advise the pharmacist of any other medications you may be taking.

## Dental and Optical

Dental and optical health services are not covered by your OSHC unless you take out extra cover. If you need to see a dentist or optometrist, you will need to make an appointment and pay the full fee of this service.

## **Interpreter Services**

We are lucky in Australia to have a variety of healthcare professionals from many different cultural backgrounds, so you may be able to see a doctor who speaks your first language. However, if you are having difficulties communicating with your doctor, the Translation and Interpreter Service (TIS) can be used. For more information, visit www.immi.gov.au or phone 131 450.

## Mental Health

AAPoly's Student Counselling Service provides confidential, professional counselling for students who have personal problems that may affect their academic study or performance. It consists of a wide range of services including short-term counselling, assessment, and referral, monitoring and follow-up.

This service is free of charge and it is available for students from Monday to Friday, from 9am to 5:00pm.

# Overseas Student Health Cover (OSHC)

Overseas Student Health Cover (OSHC) is insurance that provides cover for the costs of medical and hospital care which international students may need while in Australia and is mandatory for international student visa holders. OSHC will also cover the cost of emergency ambulance transport and most prescription drugs.

### How do I get OSHC?

You may be or have been asked for an OSHC payment in the education offer package you receive from your chosen education provider, if they have a preferred provider agreement you don't need to complete a formal application form. If not, you may need to complete an Application for OSHC which is available from registered OSHC providers and most educational institutions. Your local education adviser can lodge your OSHC form and payment at the time of processing your enrolment to study in Australia.

Only Australian health funds that have signed an agreement with the Australian Government can provide OSHC. Most Australian education institutions have a preferred OSHC provider. AAPoly's preferred OSHC provider is Bupa. You may choose to change your health fund at anytime, but you will need to abide by the conditions of change of the health fund provider you are leaving.

#### **Recommended OSHC Providers**

BUPA OSHC: https://www.bupa.com.au/health-insurance/oshc Allianz Global Assistance: www.oshcallianzassistance.com.au Medibank Private: www.medibank.com.au Australian Health Management: www.ahm.com.au Nib OSHC https://www.nib.com.au/

Students may also take out additional cover in the form of Extra OSHC, and students who could not previously access OSHC may now be able to access Optional OSHC. Some students may be exempt from enrolling in the OSHC, such as students from countries whose governments may have Reciprocal Health Agreements for students in Australia.

Note: only some reciprocal health agreements cover students in Australia, some will only cover visitors. You should determine if you are eligible before you apply for your visa to come to Australia.

Further information on OSHC can be found at the following website:

https://www.health.gov.au/resources/publications/overseas-student-health-cover-oshc-explanatoryguidelines-for-consumers

If you come to Australia on a visa other than a student visa and undertake a short course of study of three months duration or less, you will not be eligible for OSHC. It is wise to purchase travel or private medical insurance in this case.

# Accommodation

AAPoly can arrange student accommodation upon request for Homestay and Student Lodge accommodation.

For Homestay accommodation we approve all homestay providers. Students are placed according to their individual needs and preferences, where possible. Generally there is a minimum booking period of 4 weeks. There are two main options available: Half Board which includes breakfast and dinner weekdays and 3 meals on weekends and Room Only which is a single room with no meals but students have access to the kitchen.

Student Lodges are residences generally located at the centre of the city.

Students need to send their request to our Accommodation Officer via email at <u>accommodation@academies.edu.au</u>.

Other accommodation options available for students in and around Melbourne or Sydney, including rental properties, services apartments, share accommodation, hotels and backpacker hostels. Please refer to <a href="https://aapoly.edu.au/study-at-aapoly/living-in-australia/">https://aapoly.edu.au/study-at-aapoly/living-in-australia/</a> for more details.

# **Special Needs**

AAPoly recognises that students may not be able to progress satisfactorily in their studies due to foreseen and unforeseeable circumstances or because they may have special needs including a learning disorder previously not identified or disclosed. AAPoly monitoring of students' course progress allows for early identification of students having difficulties with their studies. The policy and procedure also provides students with appropriate intervention strategies and academic support to assist such students in completing their studies within the planned study period. If at that time a special need is identified, the Academic staff will consider which reasonable resources, adjustment and additional support will be required and made available to the student.

Refer to <u>https://aapoly.edu.au/special-needs/</u> for information on a range of support services provided to the students.

# Laws and Safety in Australia

## Obeying the Law

One of the reasons we have such a wonderful lifestyle in Australia is due to our representative democracy, the separation of powers, and our respect for the rule of law. We have a lot of laws in Australia, and as a result, society runs smoothly.

In being granted a visa to study in Australia, you signed a document (Australian Values Statement Temporary) agreeing to respect Australian values and obey the laws of Australia for the duration of your stay. Failure to comply with the laws of this land (including State and Territory laws) could result in a fine or the cancellation of your visa and possible deportation back home. If you are convicted of a serious crime, it could result in imprisonment. Nobody wants this to happen!

You can find a comprehensive outline of Australian law and the legal system at <u>https://www.australia.gov.au</u>

### Legal Services and Advice

If you do break the law, are arrested and need to attend a court appearance, you will need legal representation to negotiate Australia's complex legal system.

#### Victoria Legal Aid – 1300 792 387

Victoria Legal Aid can assist with many issues, though they may not take all cases. The Victoria Legal Aid (VLA) Legal Information Service can be contacted for free general information over the phone about the law and how they can help you. It's open Monday to Friday, 8.45 am to 5.15 pm. https://www.legalaid.vic.gov.au/

#### Legal Aid New South Wales – 1300 888 529

Legal Aid NSW has a central office in Sydney (Central Sydney) and 20 offices in metropolitan and regional NSW. Our operating hours are from 8.30am to 5.30pm for Sydney (Central Sydney) and 9am to 5pm for all other offices <u>https://www.legalaid.nsw.gov.au/contact-us</u>

#### **Youthlaw –** 9611 2412

Youthlaw provide free and confidential legal advice to young people up to the age of 25. It is open Mondays to Fridays 2pm to 5pm.

#### Community Legal Centres <a href="https://www.communitylaw.org.au/">https://www.communitylaw.org.au/</a>

Medibank also provides legal advice.

# Sexual Assault and Harassment

#### What is Sexual Assault?

Sexual assault is a behaviour that is sexual in nature, that is unwanted and makes the person feel uncomfortable, frightened or threatened.

It is sexual activity to which a person does not give full agreement. The use of emotional or physical violence to force another person to engage in sexual activity also constitutes sexual assault. Sexual assault can take various forms, such as:

- verbal harassment;
- sexual harassment;

- being made to look at, or pose for pornographic photos;
- stalking; and
- rape

Sexual assault is a criminal offence. It includes sexual harassment, unwanted touching, indecent assault and penetration of any kind.

Sexual Harassment can include behaviour, such as:

- Staring or Leering
- Questions about your private life or physical appearance
- Unwanted physical contact
- Unwelcome hugging, kissing or cornering
- Sexually explicit text messages, images, phone calls or emails
- Sexually suggestive comments or jokes

#### Precautions

It is important to remember that it can happen to anyone and at any time, but certain precautions may make it more difficult for a possible perpetrator. For instance,

- when socialising, be smart. Drink in a way that leaves you in control. Leaving drinks unattended leaves them open to being spiked quite easily;
- walk with confidence and purpose;
- avoid lonely or dark places;
- be wary of strangers, whether they are on foot, in cars or at parties;
- be aware of the people around you;
- respect your intuition; and
- if placed in a situation where you feel uncomfortable say "**No!**" loudly and with conviction.

## What do I do if I am assaulted?

It is very difficult to tell someone that you have been sexually assaulted. It is important to remember that sexual assault is a serious crime and can happen to people regardless of their gender or sexuality. You may choose to report the offence to the Police. Alternatively, you may want to contact your closest Sexual Assault Service.

Talk with a specialist 24-hour counselling service, like those listed below:

• 1800RESPECT: 1800 737 732

#### Melbourne

Sexual Assault Crisis Line (**Ph: 1800 806 292** - free call, 24 hours, 7 days a week) Centre Against Sexual Assault (**Ph: 03 9635 3600**)

#### Sydney

NSW Rape Crisis (Ph: 1800 424 017 - free call, 24 hours, 7 days a week)

## Making a Police Report

From a public phone or mobile phone, ring the police on **000**.

• Do not wash, shower, change clothes or clean up in any way until after talking to the police and going to the hospital. You could destroy vital evidence;

- Don't drink alcohol or take tranquillisers or other drugs as you will have to give a clear account of what has happened;
- Try to remember everything you can about your attacker; and
- Remember, you are the victim. You have nothing to feel guilty or ashamed about.

Police officers are aware that a person who has been assaulted, sexually or otherwise, is likely to be suffering from emotional shock. They will do all they can to make things as easy as possible for you. It is likely they will provide a female police officer for a female victim. If not, you have the right to request one. You can also ask the police to contact a friend, family member, interpreter or religious adviser to be in attendance with you when you are dealing with the circumstances surrounding the report of assault.

Please remember you can call the **AAPoly's emergency phone number 0433174385** if you need assistance or support through reporting a sexual assault.

# Important Numbers and Contact Details

#### Emergencies – Dial 000

The Triple Zero (000) service is the quickest way to get the right emergency service to help you. It should be used to contact Police, Fire or Ambulance services in life threatening or emergency situations only. Emergency 000 lines should not be used for general medical assistance.

#### Police

In Australia police protect people and properties, detect and prevent crime, and preserve peace for everyone. They are not connected to the military or politics. The police can help you feel safe. In a non-emergency situation you can contact the local police station.

To obtain the contact details for a local police station refer to the following websites:

Melbourne - <u>https://www.police.vic.gov.au/</u> Sydney https://www.police.nsw.gov.au/

Some phone numbers of local police stations are below:

Melbourne East: **9637 1100** Carlton: **9347 1377** Sunshine: **9313 3333** Dandenong: **9767 7444** 

Fire – Dial 000

The fire brigade extinguishes fires, rescues people from fires in cars and buildings, and helps in situations where gas or chemicals become a danger. As soon as a fire starts call 000 no matter how small or large the fire may be.

#### Ambulance – Dial 000

Ambulances provide immediate medical attention and emergency transportation to hospital. Dial 000

#### Victoria State Emergency Service – Dial 132 500

The State Emergency Service (SES) is an emergency and rescue service dedicated to providing assistance in natural disasters, rescues, road crashes and extreme weather conditions. It is made up almost entirely of volunteers and operates in all States and Territories in Australia. For emergency assistance in a flood or storm dial 132 500.

#### NSW Sate Emergency Service – Dial 132 500

NSW State Emergency Service (SES) is an emergency and rescue service dedicated to assisting the community. They are a volunteer-based organisation that provides emergency assistance to the people of NSW 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year. For emergency assistance in a flood, storm and tsunami dial 132 500.

#### Lifeline - Dial 13 11 14

Lifeline provides suicide prevention services, mental health support and emotional assistance, not only via telephone but face-to-face and online. Lifeline's 13 11 14 service is staffed by trained volunteer telephone counsellors who are ready to take calls 24-hour a day, any day of the week from anywhere in Australia. These volunteers operate from Lifeline Centres in every state and territory around Australia.

Anyone can call Lifeline. The service offers a counselling service that respects everyone's right to be heard, understood and cared for. They also provide information about other support services that are available in communities around Australia. Lifeline telephone counsellors are ready to talk and listen no matter how big or how small the problem might seem. They are trained to offer emotional support in times of crisis or when callers may be feeling low or in need of advice. Dial 13 11 14.

#### Poisons Information Line – Dial 131 126

The poisons information line provides the public and health professionals with prompt, up-to-date and appropriate information, and advice to assist in the management of poisonings and suspected poisonings. The seriousness of a poisoning situation is assessed after a detailed history is obtained from the caller. Members of the public may be then given first aid instructions, information on possible symptoms, and advised on the need for assessment by a doctor or referral to hospital. The Australia-wide Poisons Information Centres have a common telephone number, dial 131 126.

Emergency Translation – Dial 1300 655 010 For translation service in an emergency situation, dial **1300 655 010** 

Department of Home Affairs – Dial 131 881 https://www.homeaffairs.gov.au/

Australian Taxation Office (ATO) – Dial 132 861 https://www.ato.gov.au/

# International Students Groups

Australian Federation of International Students (AFIS) 247 Flinders Lane (Ross House) Melbourne VIC 3030 <u>http://internationalstudents.org.au</u>

Council of International Students Australia (CISA)

Among other activities, CISA is involved in the following:

- advocating for the interests and needs of international students;
- advocating for high quality education for international students;
- promoting cross-cultural awareness and interactions in Australia; and
- advocating for non-racial, non-discriminatory law reform concerning international students. http://www.cisa.edu.au/

Study Melbourne

Provides support to international students in Victoria with services ranging from confidential support, free events, and the Study Melbourne Centre <a href="https://www.studymelbourne.vic.gov.au/">https://www.studymelbourne.vic.gov.au/</a>

MELD Magazine - Australia's Leading International Student News Website <a href="https://www.meldmagazine.com.au/category/community/">https://www.meldmagazine.com.au/category/community/</a>

# Student Support Services

### Academic Head

Academic Head – Key Personnel:			
Chief Executive Officer	Joanna Kelly	+61 3 8610 4193	j.kelly@aapoly.edu.au
Academic Dean	Professor Paul Watters	+61 3 8610 4100	p.watters@aapoly.edu.au

### Student Services & Counsellors

Student Support – Key Personnel:			
Head of Student	Gabriela		a radriguaz@acadamias adu au
Services	Rodriguez	+61 2 9224 5522	g.rodriguez@academies.edu.au
Student Services		+61 3 8610 4100	studentadmin@aapoly.edu.au
Student Counsellor	Angela Rivera	+61 3 8610 4106	a.rivera@aapoly.edu.au
Student Counsellor	Donna Del Porto	+61 3 8610 4106	d.porto@aapoly.edu.au
Student Counsellor –	Marcela	+61 425 253 019	m caldarriaga@aanaly.adu.au
Sydney Campus	Saldarriaga	+01 425 255 019	m.saldarriaga@aapoly.edu.au
Accommodation	Junka Steinert	+61 3 9602 4800	accommodation@academies.edu.au
Officer	Julika Stellielt	+01 5 9002 4600	accommodation@acadefines.edu.au

### HE Academic Support

HE Academic Leaders – Key Personnel:			
Associate Dean (Education)	Dr. Sunny Vinnakota	+61 3 8610 4142	s.vinnakota@aapoly.edu.au
Senior Lecturer and Head, Academic Integrity	Dr. Mohan Dass Mohan	+61 3 8610 4141	d.mohan@aapoly.edu.au
Program Coordinator - BTHM	Johnson Boda	+61 3 8610 4120	j.boda@aapoly.edu.au
Course Coordinator (Sydney Campus)	Dr. Walied Askarzai	+61 3 8610 4100	w.askarzai@aapoly.edu.au
Course Coordinator (Cyber Security)	Dr. Tim McIntosh	+61 3 8610 4135	t.mcintosh@aapoly.edu.au
English Language Support / Head of Secretariat	Kathleen Doyle	+61 3 8610 4133	kathleen.doyle@aapoly.edu.au
Library and Information Resource Coordinator	Lenore Comrie	+61 3 8610 4132	l.comrie@aapoly.edu.au

### VET Academic Support

VET Academic Support – Key Personnel:			
Manager, VET	Min Chiam	+61 3 8610 4154	m.chiam@aapoly.edu.au
Operations			
Course Progress	Iris Lee	+61 3 8610 4191	i.lee@aapoly.edu.au
Coordinator			

Course Coordinator	Richard O'Connor	+61 3 8610 4108	r.oconnor@aapoly.edu.au
Work-Integrated	Marissa Pacheco	+61 3 8610 4118	m.pacheco@aapoly.edu.au
Learning			
Coordinator			
Work-Based	Ziggy Cilcoro		z sikora Qaanahy adu ay
Training Supervisor	Ziggy Sikora	+61 3 8610 4183	z.sikora@aapoly.edu.au

### IT

IT Support – Key Personnel:			
IT and Facilities	Claudio Froncillo	+61 3 8610 4158	c.froncillo@aapoly.edu.au
Support Officer	Christian Guarin	+61 3 8610 4182	a guarin@aanaly adu au
IT Support Officer	Christian Guarin	+01 3 8010 4182	c.guarin@aapoly.edu.au